d LODHA 12, Bhagal Singh Marg, New Delhi - 110 001, india

Telaphone 181 11 23710976/ 23710977 [ 23364671 / 2414

| & co Fax 181 11 23345168 / 23314309

E-malf ! dethi A
Churtered Accountants @odhace. com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of The Sirpur paper Mills Limited
Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinicn

We have audited the financial statements of The Sirpur Paper Mills Limited ("the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31« March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as "financial statements”),

In our opinlon and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”™) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confarmity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 312 March, 2020, and Its loss (including Other
Comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash Aows for the year ended an that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards pn Auditing (SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described In the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficlent and appro priate to provide a basis for our ppinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other Information
comprises the information included in the Director's report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our gpinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any farm of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to
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be materially misstated. If based on the worl we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Sectlon 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India; including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Sectlon 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsibile for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or In the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these [inancial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, désign and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit In order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate Internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.




» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concerm. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, amang other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding Independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters n our auditor's report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Repart) Order, 2016 ("the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure
A" astatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order; to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as itappears from our examination of those books,




h)

i
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The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss Including other comprehensive income, the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Repart are in
agreement with the books of account.

In ‘our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014.
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2020 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31= March, 2020 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financlal statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
managerial remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financlal position in jts
financial statements - Refer Note Nao. 33 to the financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Indian Accounting
Standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.301051E

{N. K. Lodha)

Partner
Membership No. 85155
UDIN:20085155AAAABF7186

Place: New Delhi
Date: 5% May 2020



"Annexure A" referred to in the Independent Auditors’ report to the members of The Sirpur
Paper Mills Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31+ March, 2020, we report
that:

tii

iv

vi

vii

a) The Company Is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b) As informed to us, the Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed
assets in a phased manner which, In our opinion, Is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets, No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

¢] According to the information and explanations given to us-and on the basis of our examination
of the records the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of
the Company.

The inventories (except stock in transit) of the Company, have been physically verified by the
management during the year, The procedures of physical verification of inventory followed by the
management are reasonable in relation to the size of the Company and nature of its business. The
discrepancies noticed on such physical verification of inventory as compared to bogk records were
not material.

The Company has not granted any loans during the year, secured or unsecured, to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties required to be covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act, Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(jii){a), (b) and (c)
of the Order are not applicable.

The Company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or security to the parties
covered under Section 185 of the Act. The Company has not given any loan, given any guarantee
or provided any security and acquired security within the meaning of Section 186 of the Act.

The Company has not accepted deposits during the year from the public within the provisions of
section 73 to 76 or any other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there
under.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account including the cost records maintained by the
company and are of the opinion that, prima facie, cost records have been made and maintained.
We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the said records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

a) According to the information and explanation and based on records ,the Company is regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State [nsurance,
Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There wene no arrears of undisputed statutory
dues as at 31* March, 2020, which were outstanding for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defauited in repayment of loans or borrowingto a financial institution and banl.
The company has neither taken any loan from the government nor having any outstanding
debentures during the year

On the basis of information and explanation given to us, term loans have been applied for the
purposes for which they were obtained, The Company did not raise any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments).

Based on the audit procedure performed and on the basis of information and explanation provided
hy the management, we report that no fraud by the company or on the company by its officers or
employee has been noticed or reported during the year under audit

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us; the Company has
paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order are
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the representation obtained from
the management, the Company has complied with section 177 and 188 of the Act in respect of
transactions with related parties and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. (Read with note no.41)

According to the information and explanations give to us, the Company has made preferential
allotment of redeemable preference shares during the year in terms of provisions of section 42 of
the Act. The proceed has been used for the purpose it was raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the representation obtained from
the management, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-] of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.

(N.

Partner

Lodha)

Membership No, 85155

UDIN : 200B5155AAAABF718B6
Place: New Delhi

Date: 5% May 2020
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The Sirpur Paper Mills
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control ever financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential compoenents of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Com panies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financlal Cantrols Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Dur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or errar.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of
the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financlal Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls aver financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For LODHA & CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 301051E

(N. K. Ladha)

Partner

Membership No. 85155
UDIN:20085155AAAABF7186

Place: New Delhi
Date ; 5% May 2020



THE SIRPUR PAPER MILLS LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

Rs. in Laca
Mots March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
ASSETS )
Han-Current Asseis
Proparty.Plant and Equipmant 2 55,301,683 748704
Capilal Work-in-Progress. 4.B70.87 27,554,349
Oiner Intangible Assets 3 231,82 .
Firancial Assets
Other Financial Assets 4 BAT B4 168.52
Cther Non-Curren! Assats 5 826 64 E3B. 38
B1,081.70 35,6608.24
Current Assels
Inuenlones 8 5.088.85 237993
Financial Assets
Trade Recelvables 7 6,50 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents ] 3JBE.60 570,35
Bank Balances other than above g 562.78 443,89
DCithar Financial Assets 10 9.602.61 35.94
Curment Tax Agsels (Net) 1" 1077 4.10
Cher Currant Aszats 12 £,396.8: 2.741.24
22,056.1 6,176 46
Total Assets 84,037.83 gﬁﬂﬁ
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capitsl 13 18,200.01 18,200.01
Dither Equity (2.338.88) (685,73)
156,883.13 17,504.28
LIABILITIES
Mon-Current Llabliites
Financlal Liabilifias
Barrawings 14 54 17817 21,254.84
Other Financial Ligbilies 15 are.z3 27.00
Provisions 16 - -
Daferred Tax Liabiies (Net) 7 = -
Cthar Nan-Curran! Liabildies 18 4, 78333 -
58,341.73 21,281.84
Current Liabilities
Financial Lisbilities
Borrowlings 18 301 .87 -
Trade Payables 20
Micma & Small Enferprises 26,18 22143
Cithers 4 451 .48 B75.80
Other Finencial Liabliflas 21 367283 1,880.10
Cithar Currant Liabilitias 22 344 06 6274
Provisions 23 37.58 108,41
8,832.87 _3,249.58
Total Equity and Liabilities B4,027.83 42 035.70

Significant Accounting Policien

The aocompanying notes referred 1o above form an integral par of tha Standalans Financial Statemanis

As pet our repon of even date sttached

for LOOHA & CO
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registrafion

(MK LODHA)
Pariner
Membarship Mo, B5166
Menw Dalhi, the Sth May, 2020

LL-RL-CQJLLT&L

Chiel Finance Officar

For and on bahatf of the Board of Directors

“ : Fﬁi;m

Gummn; Sacretary f\ ] )
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THE SIRPUR PAPER MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE 12 MONTH ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

Rs. in Lacs
Note 2019-20 201819

Revenue :
Nel Sales 24 533539 -
Other Operating Revenue 24 (A) 71.88 85 .44
Revenue from Operations 5407.37 95.44
Other Incoma 25 3.036.73 1056.01
Total Revenue (I+11) 5.444.10 200.45
EXPENSES
Cosl of Materials Consumed 26 4,995 .96 -
Changes In Invenlgries of Finished Goods, Stack-in-Trade and 27 (1,044.14) 65.48
Woark-In-Progress
Employes Benefits Expense 28 1,028.12 B2 36
Finance Cosis i} 743.13 20018
Dapreciation and Amorisation Expenses 3o 429,08 EoB.25
Other Expenses H 4.458.42 42330
Total Expenses 10,611.57 1,369.58
Profit/(Loss) Before Interest, Depreciation & Tax (PBIDT) {995.26) {(370.70)
Exceptional ltams - -
Profit/{Loss) Before Tax (2,167.47) (1,188.13)
Tax Expense
Currenl Tax (MAT) - -
Less | MAT Credit Entitlemant . -
Provision ( {Credit) for Deferred Tax - -
Profit/{Loss) for the Year {2,167 .4T) {1,169.13)

Other Cemprehansive income

lems that will not be reclassified to Profit and Loss

(i) Re-measurement Gain/{Loss) on Defined Benefit Plans (3.83) 45,13
(i) Tax on (1) #bove o -

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the Year 12,171.40) {1,124.00)
Earnings per Equity Shares

1) Basic (In T) {1.18) (0.82)
2} Diuted (in {1.19) {0.92)
Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompanying notes referred to above form an Integral part of the Slandalone thncral Statements

As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for LODHA & CO,
Chartered Accountants : 5
Firm's Registration Wupiber Elmﬂﬁ‘LE_ e ‘_,.J""ryﬁ
/ q-‘ : / ‘\LL' }-',._,m-"‘
'~ \cpr‘" . Directors
| f‘ lately V

(NK LODFA)

Fartner .l {_D-Qdi{?_!'i}r

Membership No. 85155

New Dethi, the Sth May, EGEIJ Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary

(2)



THE SIRFUR PAPER MILLS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES (N ECHITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

AE i Lacs
A Equity Shars Capital |
Changzs i Equity Share Capital :
March 31, 2078 furt 204530 MAR 3, 2020 |
18:200,.01 - 18,200 01 }'
!
B. Other Equity |
" Othar Comprefemive ncame (G
Roms that will not be Reclassified o proft
or hoss
Particul: Resarve amd Slirplus. Total
Capitsl Seguritlia m'5 o fte-rrmmayremant of Equity Instrumprnis
Retainod Earndngs | Capital Reserved | Redemption Prarmiuim Financial Ganeead Rasonee the it Mﬂ-ﬁﬂ oc
Reserve Reserye I I eenefit plans ¥
March 31, 2018 {42,5603.00) 516 T0.93 741147 - BIEET| | - N
Lasas for the year 7. 168 13) - . * - - - [ERCERET
Cancelation of Shanes {refer Note 32 a) . 1,6%5.36 . - & - 16645238
Eftert of kmplemortation of Resoltion Ploe (refar Note' 32 b 13 7L E . - : 13, TE324
Ol Comgereherslva Incormi for tha pear - . - - 4513 4513
I of 0,01 % Redesmstis Praférence Share - 11,600.04 * 11,500 04
Barch 31, 7018 [A1672.13) 15,501.06 7083 TA11.47 11,600.04 B,346.97 4513 {5887
L e B e yar (2 167 47) = . . - (2167 AT
Cither Comgrenonsive Incofmn Tor the year - - - . - (383} 243
iszoe of 0.01% Redoemiable Pratencs Sharae - 5,50‘.2_5 ~ ] - 53025
Miarch a1, 2020 (45, E30 50 15,501.86 70,93 FAILAT V2,130,239 B,386.97 4130 - i ]

# Inchides canmlistion of equity shanes purseant i Fessiulien Plan and net sffect of Rosoltion Plan as apgoved by the NCLT

The scompairying notes refermed (0 abovs Torm an insegral part of the Swndakons Financiat Stemoents

55 pa o Tepodt of even dato atinched

Directors
Yl atobs =2
Mo Diafbii, B 50N Wiy 2020 Chind M Dificer Company Sacratsry



Company Overview, Basis of Preparation & Significant Accounting Policies.
I. The Company Overview

Incorporated in 1938, The Sirpur Paper Mills Ltd ("SPML") is 2 Public Limited Company.
The registered office of the Company is situated at 5-8-22/1/1, 1% Floor, Adarsh Nagar,
Hyderabad — 500063, Telanagana. The Company is ane of the largest manufacturers of
Writing and Printing and Colour paper in India, The Company has an integrated Pulp and
Paper Plant at Sirpur-Kaghaznagar in the district of Kumurambheem Asifabad, Telangana
State.

The Company over the years has evolved as a reputed Brand with a seven-decade presence
in the business. The Company has specialised in production of niche varieties of paper and
has a wide range of products spanning almost all segments of paper like wriling & printing.
packing, paperboard, air mail and cheque paper, with Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF)
bleached wood pulping facilities. The mill uses bamboo, eucalyptus, subabul etc as main raw
materials,

The factory at Kagaznagar was shut down for maintenance on 27 September 2014 and the
same was not in operation since then due to financial crisis and various other issues. A
Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP") in terms of the Insclvency and Bankruptcy
Code, 2016 (Code) was commenced against the Company pursuant 1o the orders of the
Hon'ble Hyderabad Bench of National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT"), dated September
18, 2017 for the revival of the Company. The NCLT had, vide its order dtd. 18th July 2018,
approved the resolution plan submitted by JK Paper Limited for the Company,

The company has partially started operations from 24® May 2018 and became fully
operational w.e.f, 1™ March 2020 subsequent to completion of capitalization of major plant
and machineries.

These financial statements were approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the
Company in their meeting held on 5™ May, 2020.

Il, Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(i} Statement of Compliance:
The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Comipanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended ) and relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

(ii) Basis of Preparation:

(4)




The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (India Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended). The Company has prepared these financial
statements to comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act").

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical
cost basis,

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued
accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use. The financial statements are
presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest INR Lac, except when
otherwise indicated.

(iil) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financlial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based upon
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods

Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes
in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statements In the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

(iv) Classification of Assets and Liabilities as Current and Non Current

All Assets and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule |Il to the
Companies Act, 2013, Based on the nature of product & activities of the Company and
their realisation in cash and cash equivalent, the Company has determined its operating
cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets
and liabilities, Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and

liabilities.
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. Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

(i} Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. The specific recognition criteria
described below also be met befare revenue Is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised upon satisfaction of performance obligation
which Is at a point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, the
Company no longer has effective control over the goods sald, the amount of revenue and
costs associated with the transaction can be measured reliably and no significant uncertainty
exists regarding the amount of Consideration that will be derived from the sales of Goods.
Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of retums and allowances, trade discounts and velume rebates. Export
incentives, Duty drawbacks and other benefits are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss,

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis using the effective interest method.
(ii) Government granis and incentives

Government grants are recognised when there is reasanable certainty that the Company will
comply with the relevant conditions and the grant will be received. These are recorded at
fair value where applicable. Gavernment grants are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss, either on a systematic basis when the Company recognises, as expenses, the related
costs that the grants are intended to compensate or, Immediately if the costs have already
been incurred

Government grants related to assets are shown as deferred revenue and amortised over the
useful life of the asset. Government grants related to income are presented separately under
"Other Income” , and government grants that are awarded as incentives with no ongoing
performance obligations to the Company are recognised as income in the peried in which the
grant is received.

(iii} Inventory Valuation

Inventories such as Raw Materials, Work-in-Progress, Finished Goods, Stock in Trade and
Stores & Spares are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value (except scrap/waste
which are value at net realisable value). The cost is computed on weighted average basis.
Finished Goods and Process Stock include cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories lo their present location and condition.
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(iv)

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand cash at bank and demand deposits with
banks with an ariginal maturity of three months or less which are subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value.

(v)

a)

e)

Property Plant and Equipment

On transition to IND AS, the company has adopted optional exception under IND AS
101 to measure Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) at fair value. Consequently the
fair value has been assumed to be deemed cost of PPE on the date of transition,
Subsequently PPE are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisifion of the items.

PPE acquired are stated at cost met of tax/duty credil availed, less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenses
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management

Capital work-in-pragress includes cost of PPE under installation / under development
as at the balance sheet date. Advances paid towards the acguisition of PPE
outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital advances under other
non-current assets.

Subsequent expenditures relating to PPE is capitalized only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the costs
to the item can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized
in net profit in the statement of profit and loss when incurred. The cost and related
accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
retirement of the asset and the resultant gain or losses are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Depreciation on Property. Plant and Equipment's of all Units is provided as per straight
line method over their useful lives as prescribed under Schedule || of Companies Act,
2013. However, in respect of certain property, plant and equipment, depreciation is
provided as per their useful lives as assessed by the management supported by
technical advice ranging from 1 to 20 years for plant and machinery and 2 to 17 years
for buildings. Depreciation on additions due to exchange rate fluctuation is provided
on the basis of residual life of the assets. Depreciation on assets costing up to
Rs.5000/- and on Temporary Sheds is provided in full during the year of additions.

Depreciation will be charged from the date the assets is available for use, i.e., when it

is in the location and cendition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. The residual values, useful lives and methods of

()



depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

d) Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognised, if the future economic benefits attributable to the
assels are expected to flow to the company and cost of the asset can be measured
refiably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred. The same are amortised over
the expected duration of benefits. Such intangible assets are measured at cost less
any accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any and are amortised over
their respective individual estimated useful life an straight line method.

The amortisation peried and the amortisation methed for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting pericd and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

(vi) Research and Development Costs

Revenue expenditure on Research and Development is charged to statement of Profit and
loss in the year in which it is incurred and capital expenditure is added to Fixed Asset.

(vii) Leases

Under Ind AS 116 Lessee recognizes assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying assets is of low value . Lessee recognizes depreciation
expenses on the right of use assets and interest expenses on the lease liability and classify
lease payment in to principal and interest component.

The Company as a lessee

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(‘ROU™ and a carresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,
except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases.

For these shori-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as
an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is Initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease ar, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
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the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

The Company as a lessor

Leases for which the Company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease.
Whenever the terms of the |ease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

(viil) Impairment

The carrying amount of PPESs, Intangible assets and Investment property are reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date to assess impairment if any, based on internal / external factors. An asset
is treated as impaired, when the carrying cost of asset exceeds its recoverable value, being
higher of value in use and net selling price. An impairment loss s recognised as an expense
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The
impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is reversed, if there has been an
improvement in recoverable amount.

(ix) Financial Assets & Liabilities

A Financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of anather entity.

At initial recognition, all financial assets are measured at fair value. Such financial assets are
subsequently classified under following three categeories according to the purpose for which
they are held. The classification is reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

(a) Financial Assets at Amortised Cost

At the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and
interest on principal amount outstanding on specified dates, These financial assets are
intended to be held until maturity. Therefore, they are subsequently measured al amortised
cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. The EIR amortisation is included as interest income in the profit or loss, The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

(b) Financial Assets at Fair value through Other Comprehensive Income

At the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and
interest on principal amount outstanding on specified dates, as well as held for selling.
Therefore, they are subsequently measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair
value movements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). Interest income
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calculated using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. impairment gain or loss and foreign
exchange gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
is reclassified from the OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss.

(c) Financial Assets at Fair value through Profit or Loss

At the date of initial recognition, Financial assets are held for trading, or which are measured
neither at Amortised Cest nor at Fair Value through OCI. Therefore, they are subsequently
measured at each reporting date at fair value, with all fair value movements recognised in
the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Trade Receivables.

A Receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect to the amount due from
customers on account of goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of business.
Trade recelvables are recognised initially at fair value and subsegquently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. For some
trade receivables the Company may obtain security in the form of guarantee, security deposit
or letter of credit which can be called upon if the counterparty is in default under the terms of
the agreament,

Impairment is made on the expected credit losses, which are the present value of the cash
shortfalls over the expected life of financial assets. The estimated impairment losses are
recognised in a separate provision for impairment and the impairment losses are recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss within other expenses.

Subsegquent changes in assessment of impairment are recognised in provision for
impairment and the change in impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss within other expenses,

Derecognition.

Financial Asset is primarily derecognised when;

(i) The right to receive cash flows from asset has expired, or.

(i) The Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the assel or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a * pass-through” arrangement and either:

a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
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the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred or retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's
continuing invalvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing invalvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Financial Liabilities.

Initial Recognition and Measurement.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables. loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent Measurement.
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below ;
a) Financial Liabllities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss,

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading, The Company has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial measurement
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss are al each reporting date with all the changes recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

b) Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost.

Apfter Initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method ("EIR") except for those designated
in an effective hedging relationship. The carrying value of barrowings that are designated as
hedged items in fair vaiue hedges that would otherwise be carried at amortised cost are
adjusted to record changes in fair values attributable to the risks that are hedged in effective
hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance casts in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

c) Loans and Borrowings.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of

— (”)



transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down,

Borrowings are classified as currant liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

d) Trade and Other Payables.

A payable |s classified as 'trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account of
goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts
represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially al their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

De-recognition of Financial Liability.

A Financial Liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed in general, is recognised in profit or
loss as other income or finance costs.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporied in the
balance sheel if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Compound Financial Instruments.

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at fair value
of a similar liability that does not have an equity component. The equity component is
recognised initially as the difference between the fair value of the compound financial
instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component. Any directly attributable
transaction costs are allocated to the liability and the equity components, if material, in
proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to the Initial recognition, the liability component of @ compound financial
instrument is measured at amortised ¢ost using the effective interest rate method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not re-measured subseguent to initial
recognition except on conversion or expiry.
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(x) Foreign Exchange Transactions

Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee, which is Company's functional currency.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising
on settlement of monetary items on actual payments / realisations and year end translations
Including on forward contracts are dealt with in Profit and Loss Statement,

{xi)Employee Benefits

a) Defined Contribution Plan:
The Company makes defined contribution to Employees’ Regional Provident Fund which
is accounted on accrual basis as expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss

b) Defined Benefit Plan:

The Company's Liabilities on account of Gratuity on retirement of employees are
determined at the end of each financial year on the basis of actuarial valuation certificates
obtained from Registered Actuary in accordance with the measurement procedure as per
Indian Accounting Standard (INDAS)-18., 'Employee Benefits'. Gratuity Liability is funded
on year-to-year basis by contribution to fund managed by the Life Insurance Corporation
(LIC). The costs of providing benefits under these plans are also determined on the basis
of actuarial valuation at each year end. Actuarial gains and losses for defined benefit
plans are recognized through QOCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements
are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Defined Bensfit Plan can be short term or Long terms which are defined below:
i) Short-term Employee Benefit.

All employees’ benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering services are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated
absences, performance incentives etc., and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are
recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service.

ii) Long-term employee Benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employee renders the related services are recognized as a liability at
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date

¢} Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
The Company shall recognise a liabllity and expense for termination benefits at the earfier of
the following dates:

{a) When the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
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{b) When the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the scope of Ind AS 37
and involves the payment of termination benefits.

(xii) Earnings per Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity
holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the
equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered
for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (L.e. the average market value of the ouistanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, uniess issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively
for all periods presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes
effected prior to the approval of the financial statements by the Board of Directors.

(xii) Income Tax
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity Is recognised in equity and
not in the statement of profit and loss. Management periedically evaluates positions taken in
the tax retums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purpose at reporting date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes
in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense
in the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred
income tax asset s recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses can be ulilized.
The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally
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enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a
nel basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified eligible
period.

(xiii) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities /Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a presant obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented In the statement of
profit and loss net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are discounted using a currenf pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent Liability is disclosed after careful evaluation of facts, unceriainties and possibility
of reimbursement. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in notes.

Contingent Assets are nol recognised in financial statements but are disclosed, since the
former treatment may result in the recognition of income that may or may not be realised.
However, when the realisation of income is virtually cartain, then the related asset is not a
contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate.

(xiv) Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted
for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated.

(xv) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or preduction of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of Interest and other costs that an entity
incurs In connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

(S)




{xvi) Fair Value Measurements

The Company measures financial instruments

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement s based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

» In the principal market for the asset or liability.

Or
= In the absence of a principal market , in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liabifity, The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;

« Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

» Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

« Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and
the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

(xvii} Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the
following estimates, assumptions and judgements which have significant effect on the
amounts recognized In the financial statement:

a. Income taxes
Judgment of the Management is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes
and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The company reviews al each balance sheet date the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual
outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone
financial statements
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b. Contingencies

Judgment of the Management is required for estimating the passible outflow of resources, if
any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the company as it is not possible to
predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy,

¢. Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced
by appropriate allowances for estimated irecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables
are written off when management deems them not collectible. Impairment is made on ECL,
which are the present value of the cash shorifall over the expected life of the financial assets.

d. Defined Benefit Plans,

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other past-employment benefits and the present
value of such obligation are determined using actuarial valuations, An actuarial valuation
involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates
and attrition rate. Due to the complexities involved In the valuation and its long-term nature,
a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All
assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

e. Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments,
When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on guoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation technigues including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to
these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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R=. In Lecs

Note March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
4 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

Deposits with Govemnment Authortiss & Others 1,286 45 0T 24
TOTAL 1,286.46 807,34

Provision on Deposits with Govemment Authorities & Othars 636,82 638.82

G47.64 168,52

5 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Capital Advances 92564 G538 39

TOTAL 0929.64 £38.38

(1%



Note

10

n

12

Rs. In Lacs

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
INVENTORIES"
Raw Materals 2,938 84 1.227 20
Wark-in-Progress @ 1,154.15 41,15
Finished Goods 21.12 80.68
Slores & Spares # or7 B4 1,021.80
TOTAL 5,080.85 2,378.83
*as {aken and certified by the management
# Includes Siores & Spares in transit of Rs 3,00 Lacs (Previous year Re 065 Lacs).
8 Included in triall tast run Re.NIl (Prav Year Rs.41 15 lacs)
TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsacurad
Considered Good B850 -
Credit impaired 647.74 B4T 74
B54.24 B47.74
Less: Allowance for Dountful Dabts B47.74 847 74
TOTAL 6.50 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Current Accounls * 382.31 56B.08
Cash on Hand 448 140
TOTAL 386,80 570.36
* includes Re 171 53 Lacs (Prev, year Rs 356.23 Lecs sarmarked for specified purposas)
BANK BALANCE OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Other Bank Balances
Flwed Deposil with Scheduled Banks (earmarked) 562,78 443 80
TOTAL 582.78 443.89
CLIRRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHER
Other Recelvables * 8384 -
Interest Accrued but not die 2870 4.47
Advancaes to Employees 10564 3247
Governmenl Grant Recalvable - Revenue 4,450,73 -
Govarnment Granl Receivable - Capital 5.000.00 »
TOTAL 2,602.81 36,84
* Includes As B 54 Lacs fram JK Paper Ltd. ("Ulilmate Holding Company™
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (Nat)
Advance income Tay' Tax deducted at shurce 1077 10
{Mat of Provision)
TOTAL 10.77 440
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses 23.93 28.80
Advances o Supplisre 54858 B688.78
|ndirest Tax Rocovarable 5.621.458 1,810.54
Prepaid Finance Changes 72.48 216.88
Employes Definad Benafil Plan (nel asset) 130,43 177.28
' 8,306.82 2,741.24
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Rs. in Locs

MNate March 31, 2020 Margh 31, 2019
13 SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised :
Equity Shares - 20,00 00,000 of As 10 sach 20.000.00 00000
(20,00,00,000 Equity Share of Ra: 10 sach == a1 31-03-2018)
Prefergnce Shares - 20,000 of Rs, 1 Lacs gach 20.000.00 #0,000 00
(20,000 Shars of Re. 100000 azch 2 8¢ 31-00-2019)

40,000,640 40,0000
Isuued, Subscribed and Pald up ;
Equity Shares - 18,20,00.073 Rs 10 sach fully pad ug 18,200.07 18.20001

{18,20,00 073 Equity Share of Rs 10 each fully pald up at 31-03-2019)

18 300,01 18, 300,01

MNeies
{a) Curing the FY 201819 Company had |ssuad 18,20,00,073 Equity Shares ai par which includes £,20,00,003 Egulty Sharss
issivad for consideration othar than cash. Money recesved from issue of Equity Shases hins been ulllised for the purpose the
|sEUE was made.
During the FY 2018-18 1,88,53,594 lully paid Equily Shares were sxfinguishedicanceiied 05 per the Approved Resclusion
Plan aated July 18, 2018 of MCLT, Hyderabad
(b Reconcillation of Equity Share Capiial {In AUmbers)
Shares oulsianding i (he baginning of thi yasr 18,20,00,073 1,68,85,000
Add : Shares [esued during the yaar - 18,20,00073
Lesa | Shares cancelled during the year - 1,58,88 000
Shares outstanding =l the end of tha yaar __ 18200007 18,20,00,073
[} Equily Shares;
The Equily Shanshoidars have «
= The right to receive dividend out of paiance of net profits rermaining after peyment of dividend 1o tha preference
shareholders. The dividend proposed by Board of Dirsctors (s subject o appraval of sharshoidars in (he ansuing gensral
maeding.
- The Campsany has only one oless of Equily Shares having face velue of Re. 10V sach and esch shareholder (s enfitied 1o
ong vote par shane
= Iri e Evant of winding up, Ine equity sharenoiders will be enlited o recoive tha remaining balance of assals of any, after
praferental payments and to have & shilre in surpivs assats of the Campany, proporionale fa (heir individual shamshiolding
I the pavel p equity capitafof the Company, '
{d} Ligt of Shareholders halding more than 5% of fhe Egqilty Share Capilal of the Company [In numbsers) :
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
JK Ervire-Tech Limitad 17.30,00,003 13,00.00.000
108! Bank Limited - 1.80,58.728
State Bank of India . 1,22 57.568
(e} Reconaifation of Prafsrencs Share Capdtal (in numiens )
Shares outstanding af tha beginning of the year 16,208 -
Add  Stares msued dunng the year 1,800 18203
Shares oulsianding at the and of the year 17200 18,203
] Praferance Shares,
The Preleence Sharenolders have'-
- Buring the FY 2018-18 company had esued Redeemable Preferance Shanss of As, 1,82.03,00.000 for consldaration
other than cesh, 1o be radesmsd al ihe end of 20 yeers from the issue date with dividend of 0.01% pa. Tha Equity portion
¢l these Radessmable Praference Shares, on acocount of Dividend payoul being lower |han effective mankat rete, s
recardad in Oiher Equity.
- Dunng the FY, 2018-20 company has issued Gumdative Redesmshle Proference Sharss of Re. 10.00.00,000 lor
conslderation In cash, to ba redesmed at the end of 12 yeare from the issue-date wiln dividend of 0.01% pa. The Equity
podion of these Redeemabta Proforence Shares, ar accounst of Dividand payout balng lower than effective markel rate, is
racorded n Oinar Equity,
- The GCompany nas two class of Prefarence Shares naving fece valus of Ra 1.00,000/- sach
- In the svent of liguidation the Prefersnce Share Holders will carmy & preferantial rights over the holder of Equity Sharas for
paymant of Dividend and for payment of Gaplital, in propartian to ihelr share hoiding
o) List of Shamehalders hoiding more than 5% of ihe Preference Share Capital of the Company (In numbers) .
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
08I Bank Limied 8.808 8,808
“Btate Bank of India 4618 4518
i Cerimal Bank of Indla 31 113
a Bank 1.011 1,011
Papar Limitad 1,000 -

# * Total Unpaid cummisistive dividend on Redasmable Prefaronce shases as on 3181 March, 2020 is Rs. 273 Lacs (E '| )



Re. In Lacs

Naote March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
14 NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
SECURED
Torm Loan
From Banks 35.786.11 16,453.00
UNSECURED
Liability Component of Redesmabie Prefersnce Shae 5,593 05 480184
Inter-Carporate Loan from JKPL (Uiimale Holding o™ 12,800.00 -
5417817 21,254.84
Less : Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings - -
TOTAL 54 17947 21,254 B4

A. Term Loans of Rs. 367113.94 Lacs from Banks is segurad by means of first pan passu morgage/charge on the foed sssels of the
company, @nd Is further secured by second charge on the curran! assels of the Company. JK Paper Lid {Ultimate Parent
Company) has also extended the Leler of Comfort towards (ke abova loans.

1 Teem Loens aggregaling fo Rs. 3311394 Lacs are repayabie in iotal 36 equal guarery nsiaiments from Decambar 2021 1o
Sepiembar 2030.

2 Term Loans aggregating to Rs, 3000,00 Lacs are repavable in total 16 equal quarterly instaiments from September 2021 to Juns
2025

B. Bacured Tarm lgans from Bank has baen adjusied by Rs. 327,83 Lacs for effectjve rate of interest.

C, Inter-Corperate Loan from JiKPL of Re, 12800.00 Lac is repayable &t the end of 3ed year from the date of (i's disbursament

0. Curng the year company had issued Redesmadle Preference Shares of Rs 10 Cr, to be redeemed ai the end of 12 years
{Previous year A5, 1682 Cr, 1o be redeemed al the end of 20 years) from the lssus date with dividgend of 0.01% p.a. The Equity
portion of theése Redesmabla Praference Shores. on sccount of Dividend payoul baing lowesr than eflacive markai rate, I8 recordead
in Qther Equity,

15 MNON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHER

Trade Depasits - 27 00
Interast Acerusd bul nol dus on Loans argIa -

TOTAL 78,23 m

168 NON CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision for Employes Bansfits - -

TOTAL - =

17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Tax on difference tetween book value of deprecisble assels as

214 890
per books of accoun! and written down value as per Income Tax 732510 4 v
Tax on camied forward unabsorbed Deprécialion and losses # (7.325.10) (4.214.890
a8 Total Defarred Tax Liability - .
Cpening MAT Credit Entfitlemants
Current MAT Cradit Entitlement
b Total MAT Crodit Entitlement - -
& MNet Deferred Tax Liability (a+b) = -

# Tha Company has mcognized defermed tax ssset on unabserbed depreciafion and / or brought forward business josses o the
extent of the comespanding deferred tax liabilily on the diffsrence betwesn the book belance and the written down value of fixed
assets under Ingome Tax. As such, defared f=x assals (nel) amounting 't Bs, 1358111 Lacs (Previous Year Rs, 14810.01
Lacs ), has nol baen recognized due 1o no texsble profit during cument year, deferred [ax assets will be resssessad and recognized
whan thelr will be sufficient taxable profit in future.

18 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES March 31, 2020 March 31, 2012

Deferred Govermmant Gran 4,783.33 -

i ~




Rs. In Lacs

Nota March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
18 CURRENT FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
SECURED
Warking Capital Botrowings from Bank * am a7 -

TOTAL 301.87 .
* Working Capial Borrowings are secured by hypothecation of Rew Matetials, Stock-in-Process, Stores & Bpares and Book Debis.
The same are further Secured by a Second charges on the movatile and Immovable assels of the Company,

20 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - TRADE PAYABLE

Trade Payable
;ﬂn;‘l#l outslanding dues of Micro gnd Small Entarprisss (refer note 2515 22143
Total Quistanding dues of Creditors other than Mizro and Small
Enterprisas 4451 48 BY5.80
TOTAL 4476.63 1,097.33
21 CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHER
Current Maturities of Mon Current Borrowings - -
Intarest Accrued but not due 260.74 577
Advances from related parties
JK Paper Lid. ("Ulimate Holding Company”) 2117 AE0.71
JK Enviro-tech Lid. {"Holding Cempany™) B4.38 11.24
Capits! Creditors 227206 1,433.38
Oiher Payables Baz ga 168.00
TOTAL 367283 1,980.10
21 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Advance from Gustormers * 16.08 =
Statutory Dues 112.32 62 56
Other Payablas 12.68 0.18
Defarred Government Grant 200.00 -
TOTAL 344.06 82.74
* It represents advance recelved from JK Paper Lid, ("Ultimate Holding Company™)
21 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
Provision far Employes Benefite 3758 108.41
TOTAL 37.58 108.41

23)



Note
24 NET SALES
I} CONTRACT BALANCES
Trade Receivables
Contract Liabilities

2019-20

6.50
18.06

Rs. in Lacs

2018-18

i) RECOMNCILING THE AMOUNT OF REVENUE RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

WITH THE CONTRACTED PRICES
Revenue as per contracted prices
Adjustments;

Ciscount

Reverwe from contract with customers

24 (A) OTHER OPERATING REVENUES

Miscellaneous Income

25 OTHER INCOME
Interes! Income
Government Grant
Mistellan=ous Incoma

26 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

Hardwood

Pulp

Chemicals
Packing Material

27 Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress

Inventories at the beginning of the pericd
Finished Goods
Waork-in-Progress

Less:- Obsolete Inventory/(reversal)

Inventories at the end of the period
Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress

Less:- Transfer to Pre-Oparative Expense

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

“Salaries,

Wages; Allowances, elc.
Contribufi

1o Provident and Other Funds
gifare Expenses

5,335.66
027
5,335.28 -
71.98 65.44
TOTAL 71.98 96.44
41.08 35,82
1,778.59 -
1,216.05 69.19
TOTAL 3,036.73 105.01
2.351.47 =
21.08 -
2,410.13 -
21327 -
TOTAL 4,995.96 =
89.98 19.68
4115 :
131.13 19.68
- (88.82)
2112 89.98
1,154,15 41.15
1,178.27 131.13
- (7B.12)
TOTAL [1,044.14) 65,49
903,04 59,02
85.48 2.20
30,60 2114
TOTAL 1,029.12 82.36
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29

30

31

FINANCE COST

Interest on:

Term Loan and Fixed Daposits
Others

Redeemabls Preferance Share

TOTAL
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES

Depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Amontization of Intangible Assets
TOTAL

OTHER EXPENSES

Consumption of Stores and Spares
Power, Fuel and Water

Repairs te Bullding

Repairs to Machinery

Professional Charges

Fees for Increase in Authorised Capital
Recruitment Expensas

Rent

Insurance

Rates and Taxes

Direclors’ Fees

Foreign Exchange Fluctuation
Other Miscellaneous Expenses

TOTAL

Rs. In Lacs

288.38 -
123.28 -
32147 200.18
74313 200.18
389.25 £98.25
39.83 -
429.08 598.25
275.00 -
3,385.02 -
42.25 -
T8.47 2.87
11,36 58.12
- 22744
13.83 18.44
2202 1.57
54.38 -
2023 -
223 238
0.64 -
3|11 111.38
4,458.42 423,30

(2s)



HOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

¥ ¢
a

Rasaiution Plan under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process

A carporals insolvency resclulion process (FCIRPT) under The Insolvency and Baakriptsy Code, 2018 was inltlaled againat tha Company vide an order of (he
Hydershad Bench of the Mstionsl Company Law Tributial "NOLT') dated Septembar 18, 2017 Sutieequant ta that. on July 18, 2018, the NCLT had
#pproved 1he lerma of the Resolution Plan subsmitled by JK Paper Lid ("JKFL’), which giovides. inier slis, the acgwsition of the Company &y JKPL

Pursusnt fo the Resciulion Plan. Rs 37104 Lacs hed been ssftied by ha JKFL and JK Envio-tech Limited (JKETL), & subgidiary of ihe JKPL, towards
financiai crediors; mumwmummmnmmlmmﬁnmm workmen and employee dues, eic. This corsists of cash
paymentof Ra 16004 Lacs & msue of secoriiies consisting egqully shares of Rs. 4300 Lacs and prefermsnce shares of Rs VEZOT Lace by the Company

To fund fhe cash required for setfement 25 por the Resolutich Plan, JKPL and Its sobsidiary JKETL, logether subsoribad 1o 76:37% of tha equily sham
capial of the SPML for 5n aggregate smount of R 13200 Lecs, The remaining 20,635 ol SPRL's squily share capial was given 1o the erutwhile lenders of
he SPML sk part of thi satilament pian givan In fhe Resolution Plan far Re 4300 Lace.

On aggnousl of the Resalution Plan by the MCLT, il other liabilies or abiigaiors of he Compatty, whiathar adrmitiad of not. dus or contingent. crysialiised
o uncrysiallised, kngwn or unknoén, secured or unsecured, disputed & undisputsd, present er fulurs, whethes of ngl 2t cut In the talance shests of fha
Company of he profit and (css accaunt slatements of the Company, in retation t3 any perled prior io e Comphetion Daté was writlen of in ul and shal
stand permananty extingulshad and the Company shall 8t no poinl of ime be, dirsstly or indirectly, held responsitls or liakle in reiafion hempto

Al ine smsats prioe o the Completion dats which wene not reslisanlz had also been wiifen off provided for. As per the approvad (esolution plan, the pald-
up equlty shire cagital of Rs. 18%06.36 Lecs had been exdinginihegdicancelied and sgqust emount had been crediled o he Cepital Resana.

Post implamantation of the resolution plam, Net Efect of Ra. 13793, 34 Lacs [rel off Ra. 124871 Lace wiits-off of receivaldss! loand) was credind io tha
Capital Resers In FY 2018-19 a5 stated in fhe Approved Resoluficn Plan

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES & COMMITMENTS (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)

Rs.in Lecs
Yoar onded Yoar encsed

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
a) Claim sgainal the company nol scknowledged as debis,

Excise duty! Custom dufySensace tax fiability in respact of matiar In sppeals Nl
Sales tax/ VAT ligbllity in respect of matier in appeals Hil
Demand from Governmant of Andhes Pradesh )
Inzorme tan Sability that may arise in mepect of matiees i appesl referred by the deparimard
State levios

kaboair relaled cases

Qihar matiors

EEESE

.

b} Commitmants:
Contracis remaining 1o b evecuied on capiel eoccount (Met of Advancas) EHapaz # BO0. 86

e} As per the Resoivion Plan as approved by Hon'ble Nationsl Company Lew Tribunad ("NGLT™, on July 18, 2018, all the pest ilabiites tfse than
-setiied as par of ine Resolubon Plan including contingant Habilites, whether cryataliised or uncrystalllsed, known or unknown, dispuled or unidisputed,
prasant of fulurs, n refation fo any parod prior 1o (he Compietion Date L e. 15t August 2018, stands sxtinguished and i Campany & not be llabie 1
paty ary amount sgEinet such demends. Upan approval of this Resolufion Plan by the NCLT, #f outstanding Migations! demands.. assessmisntal
appeliate or aiher procesdinga, inciuding bul nol imiled 1o any audits, investigations, search Bnd seizure, pending in cass of the Company relating o
the pefiid prior io the Completion Date, stands iwminated and 8|l coneaquantsl |atsies, || sny, siands abaied end is considered nol o be pald by
the Company

Conseguently, cedmn ciema made by (e governmani authonties related fo penod prior fo the Complotion dstela 151 Auguet 2018 have not been
gonsidernd by the company

Expanditure incurred on Corporate Soclal Responaiblities
In view of the losees in the preceding 3 years, there ia no obagation to spend on CSRA actvities wndar S&g 135 of the Compermes Act 2013

Infarest Income indudes Ra. 4087 |aca (Previols year Rs 4,82 Lacs) on Deposids wiih Banks and Rs. 0,42 Lscs (Previoys year Rs: 30 85 Lacs) on others.

OTHER DISCLOSURE REQUIRED BY STATUTE
Ae. fn Lace
Partlcitirs Yoar anded Year anded
March 31, 2020 Mirch 31, 208

Audltors Remuneration (Inclading taxes)
1, Statutory Auditors

L Auctt Foo * 502 11

i, Tax Audil Fes 1.08 -

|, Centiflcation/othar Servicas BES -

& Qul of Poihe! Expenses. o4 0000 oo4
Tolal 1634 11.26

* ingluding Ra.Nil [Previous year Rs, 7,08 Lag) paid 1o srstwhile Aucior

(%)



HOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37  Capital Work In progress Inciudes machinery, buiiding under construction end the following expenses pending aflocation | capilalizaticn
modilicationimodernizatlonirefurs|ah

(Including with reapect (o it af tha plant & Machinery)
) Fu. in Lacs
Particulars Year anded Yaar ended
March 31,2020 March 31, 2018
Consumplion of Puip 3644 7380
Consumgption af Wiand 2,844,060 2rEd
Consumption of Chamicals® 1,694.77 E4.09
Consumphon of Packing Matenal 184 70 054
Conaumplion of Siones and Spares 1,681.47 B5.0§
Hopair & Maintanance 984 85 -
Salanes, Wages, Alowances, ate. 467600 48282
Contribution lo Provident and Other Funds 16164 f4.28
Siaff Welfarg Expanses 2028 387
Power, Fual and Water §,126.81 1,018,919
Interest Capitalised 3,061.58 57164
Insurance - 82,50
Misosflansous Expanses 208.51 206,88
“incliglas ool of sl i winl 18.833.28 2EIETY
Lens: Nel Salen 6,304.42 -
Oiher Income - Revanua Subsidy LEET RO .
Siock-in-process . 7E.12
Add : Expanditune uplo previoun yene 2,767.80 -
Total 4,63E.64 :,ﬁ?.ﬂl
Lans: Allocated o Flied Assots 14, 424,00 b
Balanea i"ll«.ﬁ Eiﬁﬂﬂ

3@ EARNING PER SHARE

sz 0o = B

Profil #Loss) after tax for Basic and Diuted Eamings Per share

Waighted Averaga Number of Ordinary Shares

Hominal Valus of Ordinary Shates.

Basic Eaming Per Ordinary Share ( Fs.)
Diluted Eaming Per Ordinary Share { Rs.)

3§ THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT (MSMED) ACT, 2006
Hazad on the information svailable, there am cartaln vendors whos have confirmad Ihat they ars covsred under the Miero, Srmall and Medium Enterprises
Devslopmant Act, 2008, Disclosures relsling 1o duss of Micro and Smeldl enterprises under section 22 of The-Micro, Small end Wedium Enlarprises
Dirpslopmpnt Act, 2008, are ghaen el

Parficulars

Princigal amount and Inberest cue theneon remaming unpaid 12 any supplier s on

Iritesretd paicl by the Company in Ems of Saotion 16 of the MSMED Act slong with fhe
amounts of the paymant made o the supplier beyond the appoinied day duing lhe

wozounfing ysar

i amount of interest due and payable for the year of delay In making paymant (which
have been paid bul beyond e appointed day during the year) but wihoul addng the

Inberesd spacified under this Act

e amount of inleresl socruad and remainng unpeid

The amount ol Turther inferest remaimng due-end payable even in the succeeding
years, uniil sich dals whan the inferest duss sbove ars achuslly psid to the small
enerprise for the purposa of disallowsnce a5 § deduclible expendiiuve under section
2] of this Act.

Rz imiscs
Year onded Yoar ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
{28747 116840
18.20.00,073 12,8847 222
Ra 105 Ra. 10/
(1.35) {0.82)
{119} {057

Ra. In Lecs
Yoar endosd March Your ended

a1, 2020 March 31, 3018

67



HOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS
40 EMPLOYEE BENEFTTS

The Compary paricipaies in defined contribdtion enid benefll schames, he sssats of wihich are held (whem fundsd) i separalely sdminisiered lunds. For defined
contribiulion schemes e smour Sharged o e siEtemers of profit or ioss (-G el of contiations peyEDle @ s yeer

#] Defined Coniribution Plans:-

Amound recognized 588N AxpassecaniNiESd BN0 Badan i Note 28 & 37 Nem “Connodion o Provider e Other Funds B 758 43 Lacy {Provious yoar R, 372 43
Laea} for Emalavess’ Providan Fund

b] Dafined benafits plans

Girnlitly Expanye Re 47 £3 Lacs (Pravious mmﬂﬂm:mmwlmm‘mmwmmmm Funds® under Wobe 20, ss per Aciuaral
Vihastion

A, In Lace
Yauranded, Ywar undad
March 31, 2000 Msreh 31, 1818
Pariculars Gratu Gratuity
Fuindid Fundsd
I |Ghange In present value of abligation during the pericd
Prosant value of shiigalon al (he beginning of lhe penod 18008 245388
Inciuded in profit and loss:
- Cument Sarvies Cast 61,08 4038
- interest Conl 12580 12919
« Pang Bervice Coa L i
= Actunrial GalndLass) - -
Ineluded in OO
Al boksan|gains) arsing from
+ Exgerience ad]ustments 198,55) {10088
- Financisl sssumplion 022 324
Char
Banwlits Paid [281.12) [Tam)
Frazan| Vaius of obiligation as at yearand 1.487 48 1.831.08
il Change iin Fair Value of Plan Azsets during the period
Fian sassts al ha pagming of ihe penod 1,808 3 7,604 70 |
Included in profiiand loss:
Expactnd retu on plan sssels 137.25 105,58
Ingiudsd In O
Acisrial SendLoss) on pian assats {4125} {23.36)
Kl 470 a455.85
& confributlon J

Wmﬂ {28403} (Tie.71}
|ian essats at the snd of ihe yaer 162782 1, 608.34

Tha plan assesis sre msnaged by the LIG

il Raconclliston of Pressnt valus of Defined SBenafit Obligation and Fair Valug of Plan Assels

1 Presanl Valus of phiigation 53 31 yasr-and 1,497 505 1,831.06)
2 Faer value of plen essets al yeer-and 1.027.82 1,808:34
3 Funded sistus [SurpieaDefo)) 130,43 177,28
Mal AssatiLiabily] 18043 177,28
IV Expenses fecognissd in (e Satemant of Profit and Loas
1 Current Ssrvica Cost @t o8 40 35
3 Imlersst Cost 123,80 13018
3 Pastsarvice Cast H .
4 Espected mkum on plen ssseis _jio7 28 {10583}
Totil Exponse 783 B4.72
Y Expenses recognisad in the Stvtement of Other Comprohensive Income
1 Ml Actuarlal [GainyLoss 373y (848
£ Expacted reium on plan assets axgiuding imees! 4135 2336
Incsamss
Tolul Exponse 143 {48153}

t2e)



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yaar endod Yiar anded
March 31, 3030 Msrch 31, 2019
Particulars Grwtuity Gratulty
Funded Fundad
VI [Conatitution of Plan Assets
1 [Equity Instruments Z
2 |Detk ingirumente - -
3 [Propefy a -
4 [Insurance 12T &2 180834
VIl [Bliwrcation of FE0 ui the snd of the year
1 [Currafi Liakifiny(Assets) (13043 [VF728)
2 [Won-Currend LlabillkyRAdsats) = -
Vil | Astuasal ons
1 |Cincour| Falw SR 750
2 |Expacied rate of ratum o4 plan assets. EBZH -
3 |Morality Taole IALM {2005-040) IALM (2008-08)
4 [Salary Enscalafon 5.00% 500%
5 [Tumpier Ruls Ags up 1o 30-3%, up ta | Age up to 30-2%, up
&4-2%,, mhove 44-1% | 1o 44-2%. above 44.
1%
X The axpecied corinbuiion for Dafinad Bensfil Plan for ha naxd Anapclal yesr will ba R=. Nl
X Sansltvity Analysls
Rauin Lecs
Gratuiy March 34, 2020 March 31, 1018
Increans Decressa incresss Docragss
Descount rale [1% movement) (TE 89 B4 79 (TH. BE.D4
Futurs sslsry growtn | 1% movemens; 85.48 {77.84) 6.6 [TB.20]
| Emiplayee umover { 1% movemsnl) 74 S5 1343 (Te82)
Xl Mm:ﬂﬂl&hﬂ benafil cbligation from tha fund
March 21, 2020 March 31, 2018
Greatulty Girstulty
Funded Funded
18t Following Year 27505 RTEI
2nd Foliowing Yo T0.52 BOAt
21d Following Year 178.94 IEEE2
dth Folowing Vear 16208 187 57
Eth Following Year 15810 1TrTa
Sum of Years 8 Te 10 54140 82E 56
Sum of Years 11 and soove 41 88 #1338

(m)



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
41 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

al Listof Relsteg Fories
L Heiding Company

JK Envira-Tech L (JEETL) (w el tat August 3018
JK Papar Lid. (JKPL), Utimate Parenl Compary (w15l August 2018)

Songadh Infrastructure & Housing Limited {w e.f tatAugust 2018)
Jaykaypur Infrasirecture & Haollsing Limted (w.e.f 15t Auguat 20718}
J Papar Intemational (Singapore) Fre. Lid (wen f T8l August 2018)

The Sirpur Paper Mills Lid. Employses Gratully Fund

Aravall Securities and Finance Limided (1l 3%l duly 2018
Amha Invastment Privale Limited (00 298t July 2018)

Executive Diroctors
Shn Vieda Kumar Nimbagal (810 318t July 2018)
Shrt Pavan Kurrar Sudl. CEOQ & Director (w.2 1. 18t Jan 20200

Ezscutives

Shel Vinipakshan Kumaraswsmy, Mansger (from 150 Aup 2016 to 218t Dec 20149)
St Kamal KumarLakhotia; Chiel Financial Officer (w.e f Tat August 2018)

Shii Raiesh Troainl, Company Secrstary (w e 1 15! August 2018}

Non-Execufive Dirgotlors

Shri Santosh Kumrar Mantr (fill 3151 July 2078}

Bhrl Mukash Sharma (1 31a July 2018)

Ma Sunita Rana [0 31st July 2018)

Shn Om Prakash Goval (w e § 18t Ausuel 2018)

Shri Virupshshan Kumaraswamy (we.f {91 August 2018)
Shri Usayan Bose {w.e.f 15t August 2018)

Shri Pavan Kornar Sur {fram 182 Aug 2018 ta 3151 Dec 2018)

Shn Nageraju Srrama (w.e! 181 August 2018)

M. Sandhya Bal Yashawan! (from. 1si Dec 2018 ko 23rd Dec
Shn Kalpatans Tripathy (w.ef 18t Aonl 2015)

Mg Pogia Guewsla iwef 20th Janunry 20200

Non-Expculive Direclors

Shr, P.S.'Sharma ftill 11th July 2018)

Shii. Vinit Marwahs

Shri, Ashak Gupta

Shn. Ketpatans Tripathy fwoe 16886 July 2018)

Bhri Pramod Kumar Jain (wel 19th July 2018}

Mg Pognam Singh (w.a |l 15th November 2019)

Executives

Skl Ashox Gupia, Manager and Chief Finance Officar [from 18th July 2018 to 20th January 2020)
Shri. Sudipta Chakrabarty, Monager and Chisf Finance Officer {w.s f 20th January 20200
Ma. Poota Gurwela, Compsny Secratary (w,e f 18th July 2018}

bl The follewing transactions were carmsd oul with related paries (n the ordinary coursa of business

Ra. in Lacs
Halding Companies
51, No Mature of Transactions JRPL
201820 201818 2018-20 | 2018-18 |
W I af Matesnial (nol GST) 11,863.48 .
{H) [Leeseaf r 21.24 -
(i} |Mainfensnce Charges of Godown 166
is} inel_of GET)
{ly} _|Purchase of Matenal fincl. of 38T) 245 48 387 59
{v) |Purchase of Fuad Assets (ingl of
GST) - 24387
ivi) |Heimoussman| of Espersss — :
P fincl of GST) 169.54 T2A2 56,53 188,78
{wi) |Raimbursemant of Expenses —
Racajved (inci of GET) . 259 .
{wili) Pad 471,37 68.54
[ I d - RE] - 200
%) Iﬂuﬂmmabh Preference  Shares) 1,000.00 K
(] Ivizd 1280000 550000
[dl] |Loan Paid - 5.600.00
00l [pgania T o 0 it 8438 11.24| 13.40048] 73008
) Trust under commaon controd
Si. No Mature of Transsctions Employses G Fund
209820 2018-18
i) 470 4B2.50
Key Managemant Personnel (KMP)
|81 No Particulars 2018-20 2018-19
{iy | Shon-term Employes Banefils # &0 2118
i} | Sinirg Fees fo Non-Exsculive Direcion 223 238
{il] |Marmgpernani contracts - .
(iv} | Termination bensfits - -
T v |Share based payment 2 )
o> | —~
. # Tho-abipve said remuneration & axciuding provimon for Gratulty, whene the sctuarial valugtion i dana on cverall Company basis
A Ntz @ny paid an honoradum of e 12.00 lacs (Prev, year Aa4.60 lacs] to Snil Hersh Paii Singhania, Vice Chairman & Managing Doector
\ wPaper Lirited (Ulimale Perent Company), 8 relsted party, =8 an Advisor,
\2 )



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Re. In Laca
Fimancial Assats
An at March 31, 2020 As gt March 31, 2018
Si.No Purticulars Carrying Falr Camying Falr
Amiount Valus Amount Valug
1 Financial assets designated st feir value through profit - -
and loan
2 Financlal assets designatad at fair valus through ather - . -
comprahensive income
3 Financis! axssts designated st amortised coat
a) | Other Bank Balances * 52 78 582.78 443,39 44358
b | Cash & Cash Egulvslents * 388.80 388,80 §T0,38 570,36
o] | Trade meosivabies * 880 &.50 . .
d} | Other recelvaies * - = £ )
o) | Other Inancisl szsais 10,250 25 10,250:28 206,48 205.48
11,206.33 11,206.33 131871 131871
Finanelal Liskiifties
s ot March 31, 10]_'.9 An b March 31, 2019
SiNo Particulnm Carrying Fair Falr
Amoint Valus Amaount Value
1 Finmncial llakility denlgnotsd ot falr vaioe through profit - . -
and loss
H Financlal lisbditty desipnuisd st amoriised cost
i) |Bemsaings S4.401.04 54 481,04 271,254 54 I1,254 84
b} [Treds payabies * 4 4T85 83 4 4T683 1,097.22 1,087.33
e} (Othar Hnancial Bubiity * 4,082,08 4,052.06 200710 2.007.10
§3,008.72 61,005.73 24,350.37 24,158.77 |

The fair valus of financlsl assets and isbiitiss are includad at the amount &t which ihe insirement could be sxchanpad m  cufram tansachon betwsan wiling
partes, olher than in 2 forced or liquidsion ske.

Methods and assumptions to sslimste the falr values.
A Company has ndopted affective rate of intersat for caizulating interest. This hes been calculaied @s e weighted average of effeolve interest mims

caleuleted fof mach loan b addition proceasing Mees 8nd ensaction cost ralatng 1o asch inen hes also bean conaldesed for caltuliting affective intares!

rald

* The camying amounts ore-eonssdeed to b tha adfme i thelr fair values due fo shen femm naturs.




NOTES T0 THE STANDALDNE FINANCIAL STATEMENTD
41 AMANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OEECTIVES AND POLICIES:
411 Fnanelal risk fsstomn

The Cafipinys Spsdrmtonis pcisiies aaposns 1o waious Tances rses Le. manked mek, oradit sk and ik of Rgiidity. The Gompary copizes Tl e ane DNl 500 iegrad aapect of ary busness. Ty privary Rocud w b Kiraae 1
wprodchitdity of francial meskeks are sees 10 MRS potentinl sdeeroe aftecin en fis Braocal partmmanca. The rimany mirkel M 80w Company e foooign meotangs nek el més rsk, The Company ceicuintes and
Ervipss e aterrialivi sources of lning by Srbudeg Gl of Somency cover Sisd, Whanewed, hammmmmnmmﬂﬂwhhﬂgﬂm|Mhhvdg-dlunmmahhﬁem
mmmmwmmmwmmm

L Corosiy Rjak

Thes Cownpnny avalisaien. thin cLsmimos crodenlibhl cerefdy Fom Tty sooroes boforn apporirmil of ey deirditos end geiy Soancily sound potlen st appeistd a8 dissrbonss, Thet Coroeny seoued sdequals dupoidy fmm ity
dhsEwear snd Pt Aak; of b 0ol i brited Thi credi cutstandieg w soeghl 10 b (mted (o the wum of idhvarcsidepaidi o ensdl ime dilarmned By the compary;, Th SOmpeny hay SIp Sipoly mochanizn i e ) e
Ondtalinr iy s Edyiend Bgreed i

L Mariet rivk

Wkt ouk m thi rok Sl e far vaite of haute cast Aove of & Tinonckel iesremenl Wil B gue 0 fluciuohion o marsel poces, Thess DM Tee e of ri ) & Gurmeney rathe | inieesl cis s ollee poon nedatad reks
Framoial palrumnts affecas by P i ki dne A1 DO, depolin TveRinones ant derhiaiive Brancinl nninements wm-qm-mmmmmmwunmmu-wwm
Tuctiuin s of chonges i fiemgn exchangn iy, it i s U cen, W1 e Tair w0 G Raute cosh fiews of o Bnenciel msturont wil Buctantn bocmse of thenges n mesios imomes! mins. Aoguis Foracion win
ki, Wiirmamiares and Il marked paricpscds halp o i mfigets such rig

L} Forsign Gy Fiak and sansnbel

rmum-qm:-mmmhmmwmmmmmwmmmwwnmmm Ap an galn e Compary’s impod sfe Gl sulabari bt finos Foregn Eashangs
Fistos are ol wutssltoetiod. Whiormwar ro<snd, mnnmmmwummmmmm Fankacions-aod P Company folows sshebdelad rish mdesgamamt proctioes, mokling e we of denyirba e
mmmmmm%mmwwuwmu&

Mammmwmqummymmm HR0

b Indurwal Fnte Fsk and Sarmhivity

Tt Ty s Mpaniee &1t risk of Eesimms i mdiosd imerpsr moes Toes priuly 00 o date Bommeengs at vanabie rnis expotes & 18 wen o s W all uther wacshies Bekt conmtac, B folliswing be demonkieies
enmpoman of fogd Bnd Anating Fis [oowing of S company el et of AcaTg (e bomowgs o OnrgEy's paiakit

Irisjunt Rals Risk Exponiry
e, i Lars
Nint Warth, Do e bk, 00
Pariclary Mnbyiaen) | wef¥omal | (ielecd KniTptd
[rluesd Rty Horowings 1% 50 252 % 48001 JL=%
risie Rote lorrdrg 38750 [ a0 A
(Tatal Botrimdengs s amind Lo00 2 TAR
Tansfiivity on variabie rate borrowings
MMG_.WH
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ierdst Hal Incriess y D 78N %ﬁ 141 53] e {415
{ bt Faty Atcraane by [ 7% 4153 | [ 4151
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epamEior. The Comgury marages Ruualons bn nee mabarisl prioe Tuoogn Hodgns in e for of Sdvens pROCUNGTw] whis't il DADES e poosend 10 Ge Juw @l RlSo anfor Fin oovemos By comtnss ms siaigic BRetng
Wtkaed 1 oclar 1o Kowp b Pgbana el pricsss undir chace coest of imatsrial fidded I e axiire poositie
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U]
I

44  Derivative Tinancial Instruments

Thie Company dad ngt anter inte sy dervathve trandactions during the year,
Forulgn qurrency Enpaoure not hedged as ot Balance Sheel Date

Foreign Currency [Asat 31- March 2020 | As at 31- March 3019
|FCin lscy [{ln Loce Ry.) [FCin lncs |pnur.| (]
L5 Dallar |  oes A5,18 - :

45  Impairment Roview

fsgets ara tosted lor impairment whenever there are any internal or exdernal indicators of impairment. impalrmant test 18 parformed at the
level of each Cash Genersting Unll ({CGU') or groups of CGUs within the Compsny al which the assets sre moniiored for infamal
managemeni purpeses, within an operating epmenl. The fmpakrment assessment is basad on hgher of vaiue In use and vaioe from saks
calculations. During the year, the festing did not resull In amy Impaiment In e carying amount of ofher 3ssets. The measurement of the
cath genersling units* value in use iz datermined based on fnancial plans that have been uned by managamant for intermal puiposes. The
planning horfzon reflects the assumptions for ghart fo- mid-term market condltions,

Koy azsumplions usad |n valus-in-usa caleulations arsi-
(1) Cparating margins {Eamings before interest and taxes), (i} Ciscount Rate, (iil) Growth Rates and (iv) Capltal Expandiiure

45 Income Tax RE. In Lacs

a) Amount recogniaed In Statemant of Profit snd Loss

[Panticulars 2018-20 2018-18
Currant incama Tax
Cumrant yasr ’
Adjustment n respect of cument income 1&x of earler years .
MAT Credit Entitlemant
Current year e -
Revarsal of MAT credit enfifiemant of aarkar yasrs

Taotal . .
Defsrrad Tax * S =
Income tax axponss reported in the statement of profit and loss . F

* Daferred tax assets of e, 1356111 Lacs. (Previsus Year Re. 14510.01 Lacs,) have not been recognised in respact of business (nsses
and unabsorbad depreciation due 1o no taxable profit during current yesr. deferred lax assels will be reassessed and recognized whan thair
will be suifficlent wxable prafil In futune.

b) Reconcillstion of Effective Tax Rale

[Particulars 2018-20 2018-19

Frefit /{Loss) befors tax (2,167.47) [1,189.13)
Al applicable Stalutory Income Tax Hale CY 34 8443 (757 .40 {408 54)
Deferrad T::: h:nt nol recagnizad on business logses and unabsorbed depréciation THT 40 408,54
i e oo0% .

&Y



NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a7

{) During the current year in Phase-1 . section of the production facilities alongwith Boller | a section of power plant and utifities wers
commissioned on 24th May 2018 and balance production faciliies became operational from 1st March 2020 on completion of
addition to plant and equipment's modarnisalion and modification

iiy During the year the company has recognised government grant in terms of Mo entered with Government of Telangana as undar;

Particulars Amaunt( in Laes)
Revenus 4,450,772
Capital Subsidy 5,000.00

In current year Rs. 1.778.58 lacs (including Deferred Government Granl of Rs.16.67 lacs ) has been recognised in Statement of
Profil and Loss Account and Rs.2,687 80 lacs been adjusted with Property , Plant and Equipments. Defermed Government Grant
incorme of Rs.16.87 lacs has been recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss Accouni,

iy In view of nationwide lock down due to COVID-18, Company's operslions at its Unit situated at Sirpur were temporarily suspended
from 23rd March ,2020. The Company has considered impact of present and future economic conditions and adjusted carrying
amount of varlous recefvables, invéntary, Property Plant and Equipment and Provislons , based on Information avallable till the
date of approval of these financkal results.

48 Segment information
Information about primary segmeant
The Company has only one business segment .&. Paper and Board and one geographical reportable segrient L.e. Operations
mainly within India. The performance is reviewed by the Bdard of Directors (Chief operaling decision makers).

49 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to conform to cument year's
classification.

50 Notes 1 to 49 are annexed to and form an Integral part of financial statemanis.

As per our repart ot even dale altached Forand on bahall of the Board of Direciars
for LODHA & COD
Chartered Accountanis -
Firm's Rigistration HMW_’ A &;,’

g Nagyel: G“/ “ Directors

b '\'.:'..':_'.-‘ At ._I. .
(o sk

Mambership No. BS155 shepgl i s
New Delni, Ihe 5th May, 2020 Chief Fingnce Officar Company Secretary

ok



THE SIRPUR PAPER MILLS LIMITED
GASH FLOW STATEMENT

A CASH FLOW FROM CPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Mgl Profil befiste Tae and Exdr-ordinary llems
Adjustmunts for -

Depracistion and Arnorisnton Expanses
Definsd Banaftt Plans charged to OC|
Incgima frorm Investmers

{Profiy Lozs on Sale of Assats (Mal)
Finance Cosl

Intmresat Income

Oaterred Goyernment Gram

Foreign Exchangs Fluctusion

Cparating ProfitiLoss) before \Working Capital Changas:

Adjuntmerts for Working Capital Changus:
Trada and Oihar Raceivables

Irvantaries

Trade and Db Payables

Cash generaied from Dparalions

Tiawaa paid

et Canh from Operaling Activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of Froperly Plant & Equipmsny
Sale of Propey Plari & Equiprment
Inderesi Recelied

Mt Canh from Investing Activitiss

€. GASH FLOW FROM FINANGING AGTIVITIES :
Procaads from |saun of Equity Share Caplial
Praceads from Issue of Praferance Sham Capital
Frocesds af Long-term Bommaeings
Frocasds from Intes-corporate Degosa

Fepayment &f [nier-conporats Deposll
FroceadiiFepsyment) from Shor-term Borrewings {Mel)
Intesest and Financial Chamgeas

Het conh from Flnancing Activities

0. Increass)|Decrease) in Cashand
Cash Equivalenis - Cash & Bank Balance

E. OCash and Cash Equivaienia s5-8l the boginning of th
pariod - Cash & Bank Balances

F. Cash and Cash Equivalants oo af the cinse of the
patiod - Cesh & Bank Balances

MHotas :
{8} Total Llabilities from Financing Activitios
Cipening
Gamh Flow Changas

Fa. In Lace
For tha Yoar Ended ﬂ-‘.ﬂ-l_li Forghe Year Ended 310310
{2,167.4T) (189,13
429 op S90.25
1163) 4513
74343 20018
(41.08) {34.82)
[16.8T) p
064
{1,05581) {8 )
(B, 5E2 54) (2,812.14)
{2.700.82) (1, 77582
395082 {1088 B5)
(B 488 25) (8,137 80
{B.8T) {eam
(848582} {E,138.77)
(24.914.99) {9,835.84)
16,58 3135
(24, 688 13 Fi.m £8)
13,800,01
1,000,020
18,500 00 1861354
12.B00.00 B,000/00
- {13,600.00)
{8.000.00)
30187 .
(272.78) (377.40)
53,320.00 18,638, 15
(B4 6T) ‘Bz
1,014.28 121.48
045,58 1,014.35
Leng Tarm Short Term Long Tarm Shari Tarm
21,254 B4 . 31,743.03 -
33,300.00 301 a7 311384 -
(37567 - (13,102.13) .
B4 ATRAT I01ET 21,254.84 -

i) Provious year's figures have been re-grouped { e-arrsngied wherever necesiary,

Aa por our repor of even date afleched

Tor LODHA & CO
Ohmrtares Accaunianis
Firmvs Reglatration Number 3

(WK L ¥

Earine

Mamberanp fo: BE155

i Dethl, Ahe 515 May, 2000
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